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Mission, Vision And Values

Mission

Our mission is to apply science and our

global resources to improve health and well-

being at every stage of life.

Vision

Working together for a healthier world.

Our Commitments

We are committed to:

4

Advance wellness, prevention,

treatments and cures.

Bring the best scientific minds together
to challenge the most feared diseases

of our time.

Set the standard for quality, safety and
value of medicines.

Promote curiosity, inclusion and a

passion for our work.

Be a leading voice for improving
everyone's ability to have reliable and
affordable health care.

Maximize our financial performance
so we can meet our commitments to

all who rely on us.

Values

Customer Focus: We are deeply
committed to meeting the needs of our
customers, and we constantly focus on
customer satisfaction.

Community: We play an active role
in making every community in which
we operate - a better place to live and
work knowing that its ongoing vitality
has a direct impact on the long term
health of the business.

Respect for People: We recognize that
people are a cornerstone of our success.
We value our diversity as a source of
strength and are proud of our history
of treating employees with respect and
dignity.

Performance: We strive for continuous
improvement in our performance,
measuring results carefully and
ensuring that integrity and respect for
people are never compromised.
Collaboration: We know that to be a
successful company we must work
together, frequently transcending
organizational and geographic
boundaries to meet the changing needs
of our customers.

Leadership: We believe that leaders
empower those around them by sharing
knowledge and rewarding outstanding
individual effort. We are dedicated to
providing opportunities for leadership
at all levels in our organization.
Innovation: Innovation is the key to
improving health and sustaining our
growth and profitability.

Quality: Quality is ingrained in the
work of our colleagues and all our
values. We are dedicated to the delivery
of quality healthcare. Our business
practices and processes are designed
to achieve quality results that exceed
the expectations of all of our
stakeholders.

Integrity: We demand of ourselves
and others the highest ethical standards,
and our product and processes will be
of the highest quality.
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF SIX YEARS

KEY INDICATORS

Operating results (Rs. in millions)

Net sales

Gross profit

Operating profit / (loss)
Profit / (loss) before tax
Profit / (loss) after tax

Financial position (Rs. in millions)

Shareholder's equity
Property, plant & equipment
Net current assets

Profitability

Gross profit

Operating profit / (loss)
Profit / (loss) before tax
Profit / (loss) after tax

Performance

Fixed assets turnover

Avg. inventory holding period
Average collection period
Return on equity

Liquidity
Current
Quick

Valuation

Earnings / (loss) per share
Book value per share
Dividend per share

Price earning ratio

%
%
%
%

Times

Days

Days
%

Times
Times

Rs.
Rs.

Times

2014 2015
3,055 2,675
459 342
(13) 82
(14) 81
(85) 32
1,093 1,141
264 382
800 738
15.02  12.79
(0.42)  3.08
(0.45)  3.04
Q77 120
11.56  7.00
120 114

8 5
(7.73)  2.81
247 234
094  1.10
(59.48) 22.52
769.05  802.44
- 20.00

- 103.01

2016

2,771
507
196
195
113

1,225
17
1,178

18.28
7.08
7.03
4.07

7.81
125

9.21

2.58
1.36

79.36
861.37
35.00
53.47

2017

1,829
372
1,357
1,355
980

1,712

1,699

20.34
74.20
74.08
53.58

275.09
192

57.25

2.97
2.24

689.36
1,204.03
600.00
2.34

2018 | 2019
1,192 948
207 105
52 95
24 68
(11) 23
1268 1,238
13 15
1242 1,214
1732 11.08
440  10.00
203 7.8
0.93)  2.44
8842  62.70
163 178

8 4
(0.88)  1.87
394 260
332 1.85
(7.82)  16.30
891.96 870.65
50.00 100.00
(141.17)  54.29
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RUPEES IN MILLION

TIMES

PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE

NET SALES & GROSS PROFIT ANALYSIS
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RUPEES IN MILLION

EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER SHARE
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 71st Annual General Meeting of Wyeth Pakistan Limited
("Company") will be held at the Council Hall, Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce & Industry
(OICCI), Chamber of Commerce Building, Talpur Road, Karachi, at 11:00 a.m. on Friday March
27,2020 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. (a) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended November 30, 2019 together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports
thereon.

(b)  To consider, approve and authorize the payment of final dividend for the year ended
November 30, 2019. The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend
of 100%, that is, Rs.100 per share of Rs.100 each, for the year ended November 30,
2019 payable to those Members whose names appear on the Register of Members as at
the close of business on March 19, 2020.

2. To appoint Auditors for the year ending November 30, 2020 and to authorize the Board to fix
their remuneration. The present Auditors, M/s KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
being eligible, have offered themselves for appointment.

By Order of the Board

7‘/6. {io

Karachi: March 04, 2020. Tafazzul Khan
Company Secretary

Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Friday, March 20, 2020
to Friday, March 27, 2020 (both days inclusive). The Members whose names appear on the
Register of Members as on March 19, 2020 shall be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

2. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the above meeting shall be entitled to appoint
another member, as his/her proxy to attend, demand or join in demanding a poll, speak and
vote instead of him/her. A proxy so appointed shall have such rights, as respects attending,
speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a member. A proxy must be a member
of the Company. The completed proxy form must be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

3. In case of a corporate entity which is a member of the Company, the Board of Directors'
resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be required to be submitted along
with proxy form to the Company.
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Members (Non-CDC) are requested to promptly communicate (and in any event before the
first day of book closure) any change in their addresses and submit, if applicable to them, the
non-deduction of Zakat Form CZ-50 with the Company's Share Registrar, THK Associates
(Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi-75400 or update their address
and Zakat status with their Participant/CDC Investor Account Services which maintains their
CDC account in case of electronic shares.

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as prescribed
in Circular 1 dated 26 January 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:

A.  For Attending the Meeting:

1) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or
original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii)  In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier)
at the time of the meeting.

B. For Appointing Proxies:

1) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii)  The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

iii)  Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

iv)  The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
meeting.

v)  In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with
proxy form to the Company.

The shareholders holding physical shares are also required to bring their original CNIC and
attested copy of CNIC of shareholder(s) of whom he/she/they hold proxy(ies) without which
such shareholder(s) shall not be allowed to attend and/or sign the Register of
Shareholders/Members at the AGM.

A copy of the accounts of the Company for the year ended November 30, 2019 are also available
on the Company's website: www.wyethpakistan.com




Wyeth

8. Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) had earlier initiated e-dividend
mechanism through its letter No: 8(4)SM/CDC/2008 dated April 05, 2013. The Companies
Act 2017 also now provides in section 242 that any dividend payable in cash shall only be paid
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.
As such, the Company will only be able to make payment of cash dividend to its shareholder
through electronic mode. Therefore shareholders are advised that in order for them to receive
their dividends through electronic mode, the details of their bank mandate specifying: (i) title
of account, (ii) account number, (iii) bank name, (iv) branch name, code and address be provided
as soon as possible, to the Share Registrar of the Company, THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited,
1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi-75400.

9. As regards deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend:

1) The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act 2017, effective 1 July 2017 has made
certain amendments in section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different
rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by
the companies. These tax rates are as under:

(a)  For filers of income tax returns 15%
(b)  For non-filers of income tax returns 30%

To enable the Company to make a tax deduction on the amount of dividend @15%
instead of 30%, all the shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-
payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR, despite the fact that they are filers,
are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date for
payment of the cash dividend i.e. April 01, 2020 otherwise tax on their cash dividend
will be deducted @30% instead @15%.

(il))  As per FBR Circulars C. No.1 (29) WHT/2006 dated 30 June 2010 and C. No.1 (43)
DG (WHT)/2008-Vol. 1I-66417-R dated 12 May 2015, a valid exemption certificate is
mandatory to claim exemption of withholding tax under section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (tax on dividend amount) where the statutory exemption under clause
47B of part-IV of Second Schedule is available. Shareholders who fall in the aforementioned
category and wish to avail exemption under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance
2001, must provide valid Tax Exemption Certificate to our Share Registrar THK Associates
(Pvt) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi-75400 before the first day
of book closure otherwise tax will be deducted on dividend as per applicable rates.

(iii)  Further, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) has clarified that withholding tax will be
determined separately on 'Filer/Non-Filer' status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-
holder (s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

Accordingly, shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding
proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by
them (only if not already provided) to the Company's Share Registrar, THK Associates
(Pvt) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi-75400 in writing within
10 days of this notice; otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by
Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s).

iv)  For any query/problem/information, the investors may contact the Company's Registrar,
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi-75400,
at the following phone number (021) 111-000-322, (021) 34168266-68-70 or email
address: secretariat@thk.com.pk.
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10.

11.

v)  The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their NTN updated
with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send
a copy of their NTN certificate to the Company's Registrar, THK Associates (Pvt.)
Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Karachi-75400. The shareholders while
sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote the Company's name
and their respective folio numbers.

Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts and Notice of AGM through E-mail, CD or DVD
or USB

We are pleased to inform shareholders that the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
has under and pursuant to SRO No. 787(1)/2014 dated 8 September 2014 and SRO 470(I) dated
31 May 2016 permitted companies to circulate their annual balance sheet and profit and loss
accounts, auditor's report and directors' report etc. ("Annual Audited Accounts") along with
the notice of annual general meeting ("AGM Notice"), to its shareholders by email, CD or
DVD or USB. Shareholders of the Company who wish to receive Notice and Annual Audited
Accounts in the future by email, CD or DVD or USB are requested to provide the completed
Form that shall be available on the company's website: www.wyethpakistan.com, to the
Company's Share Registrar, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, Company
Secretary.

Members are also required to intimate any change in their registered email addresses in a timely
manner to ensure effective communication by the Company.

Video Conferencing facility:

In terms of SECP Circular No. 10 of 2014 dated 21 May 2014 read together with the provisions
contained in Section 134(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2017, members of the Company may
also attend and participate in the AGM through video conference facility in a city other than
Karachi, if members residing outside Karachi, collectively holding 10% or more shareholding
and residing at a geographical location, request in writing, to participate in the AGM through
video conference at least 10 (ten) days prior to the date of the AGM.

After receiving the members request as above, the Company shall arrange video conference
facility and will intimate members regarding the venue of the video conference facility at least
5 (five) days prior to the date of the AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS

We are pleased to present your Company's Annual Report for 2019 together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended November 30, 2019.

The Company is primarily engaged in import, marketing, distribution and sale of research based
pharmaceutical products.

Review of Operations and Future outlook

The summarized operating results of your Company for the year ended November 30, 2019 are as
follows:

Rupees in ‘000

Net Sales 948,237
Gross Profit 105,094
Profit before tax 68,068
Profit after tax 23,176

The earning / (loss) per share of your Company for the year ended November 30, 2019 is Rupees
16.30 [2018: (7.82)].

The year under review had been a challenging year for the economy in general due to various factors
including IMF Program, tightening of fiscal deficit and low Government spending together-with
increase in prices of gas, fuel and other utilities and significant devaluation of the currency. In
addition, the measure of documentation of economy specially at retail level also impacted the
business. This was further compounded by the fact that price adjustments for certain hardship cases
were also not approved by Government. In view of the above factors, we have lower sales by 20%
due to lower institutional and trade sales. The gross margin has decreased by 6% mainly due to
devaluation of the Rupee against US Dollar.

We have been responsive to these challenges and have mitigated the impact through restructuring
in 2018 and stringent controls over operating expenses, which have reduced by 29% compared to
last year. Increased interest rates on surplus funds contributed to higher other income. As a result,
the company reported a profit of Rs. 23.2 million as compared to a Rs. 11.1 million loss last year.

We now have a reasonable pricing policy in place and its implementation in true spirit will reduce
to some extent the negative impact of the above economic conditions. At the same time Company's
brands are research based, innovative and have strong market penetration. With right external
environment, performance is likely to improve. Besides, focus on rationalization of expenses
promises further improvement in the performance of the company.

Dividend and Transfer to General Reserve

The Directors have proposed dividend @ 100% (i.e. Rs. 100 per share) as final dividend for the
year 2019.
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Holding Company

Wyeth LLC, U.S.A. holds 576,470 (40.55%) shares, and Wyeth Holdings Corporation, U.S.A. (a
100% wholly owned subsidiary of Wyeth LLC,) holds 448,560 (31.55%) shares, in Wyeth Pakistan
Limited, thus the total holding of Wyeth in Wyeth Pakistan Limited is 72.10%. Further, as a result
of the global acquisition of Wyeth by Pfizer Inc., on October 15, 2009, Pfizer Inc. is the ultimate
majority shareholder of Wyeth Pakistan Limited.

Pattern of Shareholding

The shareholding information as at November 30, 2019 including the pattern of shareholding of the
Company is given at pages 81 and 82 of the Annual Report.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

In compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, we give below statements on Corporate and
Financial Reporting Framework:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state
of affairs, the result of its operations, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows.

b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements, and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

d) International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in the preparation of the financial statements. There has been no departure from IFRS.

e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

f)  There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

g) There has been no material departure from best practices of corporate governance, as detailed
in the listing regulations.

h) Key operating and financial data for the last six years (including current period) is given on
page 2 of the Annual Report.

i)  There are certain disputed demands for Income Tax, which have not been accrued or paid.
These have been explained in Note 15 to the Financial Statements under the head of Contingencies
and Commitments.

j)  The value of investments by the pension, gratuity and provident funds as at 30 November 2019
were as follows:

Name of Fund Unaudited 2019
DB Pension Fund Rs. 56 million
DC Pension Fund Rs. 76 million
Gratuity Fund Rs. 18 million
Provident Fund Rs. 91 million

The value of investments includes accrued interest. Audit of these funds for 2019 is in progress.

13




Wyeth

k) During the year six (6) Board of Directors meetings were held and the attendance of Directors
at those meetings were as follows:

Name No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. Iftikhar Soomro 6
Mr. S. M. Wajechuddin
Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani
Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir
Syed Zakwan Ahmed*
Mr. Shoaib Mir
Mr. Igbal Bengali

NN [N |

*Syed Zakwan Ahmed resigned as the director of the company with effect from December 23, 2019.

1)  All Board members have the necessary qualifications and experience and are fully conversant
with their duties and responsibilities required under the Code of Corporate Governance. The
Board is compliant with the training requirement and the criteria as prescribed in the Code of
Corporate Governance.

Performance Evaluation

A mechanism is in place for annual evaluation of the Board's own performance in accordance with
requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance.

Risk Management

Risk management process, undertaken by the Board of Directors, management and other colleagues,
is conducted at strategic and at multiple levels across the Company. This is designed to identify
potential events that may affect the Company, and manage risk to be within the risk appetite, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of Company's objectives.

The key areas that can impact the operations of the Company continue to be pricing and currency
devaluation. Cost of production is sensitive and is significantly impacted by devaluation of Pakistan
Rupee whereas pricing of medicines continue to be highly regulated and may not increase in line
with increase in cost, consequently the profits of the Company are subject to risks and uncertainties.

The Company is closely monitoring the impact of these risks and will endeavor to take measures
to mitigate these risks.

Directors trading in company's shares

No trade in the shares of the Company was carried out during the year by any Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Company Secretary, or their respective spouses and
minor children.

Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions during the year were approved by the Board and the details of all such

transactions were placed before the Audit Committee. The Company maintains a full record of all
such transactions, along with the terms and conditions of these transactions.
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Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure of Rs. 10.45 million was made during the year under review.
Defaults in payments

There were no defaults in payment of any debts falling due during the current year.
Environment, Health and Safety

The company is committed to protecting health and safety of everyone including visitors at our
facilities and the environment of the communities in which we live and work.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Company is also committed to maintaining occupational
health, safety and environmental performance in line with corporate standards.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company did not carry out any CSR activity during the year.
Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken
place between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

Directors

There has been no change in the composition of board of directors during the year. A casual vacancy
was created by the resignation of Mr. Syed Zakwan Ahmed on December 23, 2019 and is filled by
the Board of Directors on February 25, 2020, through the appointment of Mr. Rashid Muhammad

Khan as a Director of the Company for the remainder of the term.

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Mr. Iftikhar Soomro Chairman/Non-Executive Director
Mr. S. M. Wajeehuddin Chief Executive/Executive Director
Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir Independent Director

Mr. Shoaib Mir Non-Executive Director

Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani Non-Executive Director

Mr. Igbal Bengali Non-Executive Director

Mr. Rashid Muhammad Khan Executive Director

The current term of the Board of Directors ends on April 26, 2020, and accordingly an election of
directors will be held on or before that date.
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Audit Committee

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been determined by the Board of Directors
in accordance with the guidelines provided in the Code of Corporate Governance. The current Audit
Committee consists of three members, Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir (Chairman), Mr. Iftikhar Soomro
and Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani. The Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance
of members in those meetings is as follows:

Name No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir 4
Mr. Iftikhar Soomro 4
Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani 4

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee held three (3) meetings during the year. The
members and the attendance of the meeting is as follows:

Name No. of Meetings Attended
Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir 3
(Chairman)

Mr. Iftikhar Soomro
Mr. Badarudding F. Vellani
Mr. S. M. Wajechuddin

Share Transfer Committee

The Share Transfer Committee is composed of Mr. S.M. Wajeehuddin and Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir.
Auditors

The present Auditors, KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire at the conclusion
of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible for reappointment, have offered
themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorses the recommendation of the Audit
Committee for the re-appointment of KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants, as auditors
of the Company for the financial year ending November 30, 2020 till the conclusion of the AGM
to be held in 2021 at remuneration to be determined by the Board of Directors.

Corporate Governance

A statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is attached with this report.

By Order of the Board

W Oft G0
S. M. Wajeehuddin Iftikhar Soomro
Chief Executive Chairman

Karachi: February 25, 2020.
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Chairman's Report on Board's Overall Performance

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, ensuring that the Board plays an effective
role in fulfilling its responsibilities and reviewing the overall performance of the Board and
effectiveness in achieving the Company's objectives.

The Board comprises of an appropriate mix of directors in terms of relevant experience. The Directors
have performed their duties diligently and effectively in the best interest of the shareholders. The
primary objectives of the Board include:

1-  Providing strategic direction to the Company and supervising the management;

2-  Acting in good faith in order to promote the objects of the Company for the benefit of its
members as a whole, and in the best interests of the company, its employees, the shareholders,
the community and for the protection of environment;

3- Approval of significant policies and procedures;

4-  Establishing a sound system of internal controls; and

5-  Approval of budgets and financial results.

The Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) has been engaged to carry out the Board
evaluation.

As per the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019, the Board has formulated following committees:

1- AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee played a key role in maintaining the overall control environment
of the Company. It was primarily engaged in review of financial statements and internal
audit reports which enabled it to implement identified respective control improvements.

2- HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (HR&R):

The committee has developed a policy framework for determining remuneration of directors
(both executive and non-executive directors).

3- SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE:

The committee is primarily engaged in the approval of registration, transfer and transmission
of shares held by members in physical form.

I would like to thank our shareholders, customers, bankers and employees for their continued trust.
I would also like to appreciate the Board members, CEO and the Executive team for their dedication
and hard-work.

i e

Iftikhar Soomro
Chairman
February 25, 2020
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 Wyeth Pakistan Limited
For the year ended November 30, 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:

a.Male: 7

b. Female: Nil

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
Independent Director Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir
Non-Executive Directors Mr. Iftikhar Soomro

Mr. Shoaib Mir

Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani
Mr. Igbal Bengali
Executive Directors Syed Zakwan Ahmed

Mr. S. M. Wajechuddin
Female Director -

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board.

8. The Board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and the Regulations.

9. The Board is compliant with the training requirement and the criteria prescribed in the CCG.

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head
of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board.
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
a) Audit Committee

Mr. M.Z. Moin Mohajir (Chairman)
Mr. Iftikhar Soomro
Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani

b) Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

Mr. M. Z. Moin Mohajir (Chairman)
Mr. Badaruddin F. Vellani

Mr. Iftikhar Soomro

Mr. S. M. Wajechuddin

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per
following:

a) Audit Committee - 4 meetings during the year ended November 30, 2019
b) HR and Remuneration Committee - 3 meetings during the year ended November 30, 2019

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to EY Ford Rhodes, who are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and
that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse,
parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial
officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard; and

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

19. The requirements of Regulations 6, 7 and 8 are applicable on the Company after the expiry
of the term of the current board of directors of the Company (which expires in April 2020).

AP &Lfﬂw B,

S.M. WAJEEHUDDIN IFTIKHAR SOOMRO
Chief Executive Chairman & Director

Karachi: February 25, 2020
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+02 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Wyeth Pakistan Limited
Review report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ("the Regulations") prepared by the Board of Directors
of Wyeth Pakistan Limited ("the Company") for the year ended 30 November 2019 in accordance
with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and
to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by
the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies
Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of
the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects,
with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
30 November 2019.

pree f— /4

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: 26 February 2020

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., a Partnership firm registered in Pakistan and a member firm of the KPMG network of
Independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.




KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Sheikh Sultan Trust Building No. 2, Beaumont Road
Karachi 75530 Pakistan

+02 (21) 35685847, Fax +92 (21) 35685095

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Wyeth Pakistan Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Wyeth Pakistan Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 November 2019, and the statement of profit
or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 November 2019
and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., a Partnership firm registered in Pakistan and a member firm of the KPMG network of
Independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative ("KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.




KkPm&!

Following are the Key audit matters:

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

S. | Key audit matter How the matters were addressed in
No. our audit
1. | Revenue Recognition

Refer notes 3.1, 3.7 and 16 to the Company's
financial statements.

Revenue is recognized from sale of goods in
accordance with applicable accounting
standards and measured net of discounts and
commissions.

We identified revenue recognition as key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators and there is a potential
risk that revenue transactions may not be
recognized in the appropriate period and risk
of misapplication of new accounting standard
IFRS 15 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers" in revenue recognition.

Our audit procedures in relation to
recognition of revenue, amongst others,
included the following:

® assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the relevant
key internal controls over the Company's
system which governs revenue
recognition;

® assessed the appropriateness of the
Company's accounting policies for
revenue recognition including those
related to discounts and commissions
including its compliance with applicable
accounting standards;

® reviewed management's assessment of
applicable accounting standard to verify
the reasonableness, accuracy and
completeness of the impact on the
financial statements including adequacy
of disclosures;

® obtained an understanding of the nature
of the revenue contracts entered into by
the Company, tested a sample of sales
contracts to understand and assess
appropriateness of management's
application of applicable accounting
standard's requirements;

® obtained invoices and related documents,
on a sample basis for selected revenue
transactions recorded during the current
year to assess whether the related
revenue was recognized in accordance
with the requirements of applicable
accounting standard; and

® tested on a sample basis, specific revenue
transactions recorded before and after
the reporting date with underlying
documentation to assess whether revenue
have been recognized in the appropriate
accounting period.
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S. | Key audit matter How the matters were addressed in
No. our audit
2. | Valuation of stock-in-trade

Refer notes 3.3 and 7 to the Company's
financial statements.

Stock in trade forms a significant part of the
Company's total assets. Stock in trade comprise
of packing material, work in process and
finished goods which are stated at lower of
cost and net realizable value.

We identified the valuation of stock-in-trade
as a key audit matter as it directly affects the
profitability of the Company and involves
significant management judgment and
estimation.

Our audit procedures in relation to valuation
of stock in trade, amongst others, included
the following:

® obtained an understanding of controls
over valuation of stock in trade including
creation of provision for expired, slow
moving and obsolete items. Further we
tested, on a sample basis, their design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness;

® obtained an understanding of
management's determination of net
realizable value (NRV) and the key
estimates adopted, including future
selling prices, future costs to complete
work-in-process and costs necessary to
make the sales and their basis;

® tested, on a sample basis, management's
assessment of the NRV of stock in trade
by comparing to its recent sales prices
and executed purchase orders for future
sales, if any;

® assessed the compliance of management's
policies with regard to provisioning of
slow moving and / or obsolete stock-in-
trade including:

®  assessed, on sample basis provisions
made for expired and near-expiry
stock-in-trade

®  assessed, on sample basis provisions
made for stock-in-trade in excess
of forecasted sales.

® compared on a sample basis specific
provision for expired and slow-moving
stock in trade with underlying
documentation.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

®  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

® [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

®  (Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

® [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;
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¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section
7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Mohammad
Mahmood Hussain.
r e

Date: 26 February 2020 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT NOVEMBER 30, 2019

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Long term loans to employees
Long term deposits

Deferred taxation

Current assets

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Interest accrued

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Contingencies and commitments

Note

S O 0

11

12

13

15

2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

15,123 13,485
8,127 11,794

145 1,095
23,395 26,374
567,552 254,484
2,545 17,405
51,483 85,498
40,876 299,544
16,902 7,598
142,787 92,272
1,149,185 907,654
1,971,330 1,664,455
1,994,725 1,690,829
142,161 142,161
1,095,558 1,125,858
1,237,719 1,268,019
745,821 412,051
11,185 10,759
757,006 422,810
1,994,725 1,690,829

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S“M. Wajeehuddin

Chief Executive

Director

33

on—'[b L
Kashif!Shafi

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other income
Other expenses

Finance costs
Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit / (loss) for the year

Earning / (Loss) per share (basic and diluted)

Note

16

17

18
19

21
22

23

24

25

2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

948,237 1,192,352

(843,143) (985,842)

105,094 206,510

(113,783) (174,756)
(44,839) (47,758)

(158,622) (222,514)

(53,528) (16,004)
148,331 70,530
- (2.098)
148,331 68,432
94,803 52,428
(26,735) (28,232)
68,068 24,196
(44,892) (35,314)
23,176 (11,118)
16.30 (7.82)

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S“M. Wajeehuddin

Chief Executive Director

34
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019

2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)
Profit / (loss) for the year 23,176 (11,118)
Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Items that will never be reclassified to statement
of profit or loss

Recognition of remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined
benefit plans ( Note 27.5) 15,524 (7,686)

Impact of deferred tax - -
15,524 (7,686)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 38,700 (18,804)

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S“M. Wajeehuddin Lﬁﬁf hajir hlf‘Shafi

Chief Executive Director Chlef Flnancml Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 30 298,833 67,130
Taxes paid (95,407) (145,090)
Long term loans to employees 3,667 (10,428)
Long term deposits 950 3,822
Net cash generated / (used in) from operating activities 208,043 (84,566)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure incurred (10,450) (12,138)
Profit received on bank deposits 110,748 54,281
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 3,844 2,583
Net cash generated from investing activities 104,142 44,726

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (70,654) (419,671)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 241,531 (459,511)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 907,654 1,367,165
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 32 1,149,185 907,654

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S“M. Wajeehuddin //m hajir hlflShaﬁ

Chief Executive Director Chlef Flnan01al Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019

Issued, Reserves ---------- Total
ssue Revenue Reserve  Capital
subscribed Reserve Sub
and paid-up total

capital General Unappro- Others*
reserve  priated
profit

(Rupees in '000)

Balance as at November 30, 2017 142,161 931,753 615,656 22,089 1,569,498 1,711,659

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year - - (11,118) - (1,118)||  (11,118)
Other comprehensive loss - - (7,686) - (7,686) (7,686)
- - (18,304) - (18,804)  (18,804)
Transactions with owners recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend for the year ended
November 30, 2017 at Rs. 300 per share - || (426,483) - - || (426,483)|| (426,483)
Share-based payments (note 28.4) - - - 1,647 1,647 1,647
- (426,483) 1,647 (424,836)  (424,836)
Balance as at November 30, 2018 142,161 505270 596,852 23,736 1,125858 1,268,019

Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the year - - 23,176 - 23,176 23,176
Other comprehensive income - - 15,524 - 15,524 15,524
- - 38,700 - 38,700 38,700
Transactions with owners recognised
directly in equity
Final dividend for the year ended
November 30, 2018 at Rs. 50 per share - - (71,080) (71,080)(|  (71,080)
Share-based payments (note 28.4) - - - 2,080 2,080 2,080
- - (71,080) 2,080  (69,000)  (69,000)
Transfer to general reserve 400,000 (400,000) - -
Balance as at November 30, 2019 142,161 905,270 164,472 25816 1,095,558 1,237,719

* Others represent reserve for share based payment plan.

The annexed notes 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

S“M. Wajeehuddin //;%M:C\ hajir ashif Shaﬁ

Chief Executive Director Chief F1nanc1a1 Officer
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
Wyeth Pakistan Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company incorporated in 1949
in Pakistan. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange and is engaged in import,

marketing, distribution and sale of research based pharmaceutical products.

The Company's registered office is situated at Room No. 002 & 003, PGS Admin Block, First
Floor, B-2, S.I.T.E., Karachi.

Pfizer Incorporation is the ultimate parent of the Company. Wyeth LLC, USA and Wyeth
Holding LLC USA, which are subsidiaries of Pfizer Incorporation, are the principal shareholders
of the Company.
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards

applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

2.2  Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless
stated otherwise.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's

functional and presentation currency. All financial information presented in Pakistani
Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.
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2.4

2.5

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting and
reporting standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Estimates, assumptions and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including reasonable
expectations of future events. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively commencing from period of revision.

In particular, information about judgments made by the management in the application
of approved accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, that have
significant effect on the financial statements, and estimates that have a significant risk
of resulting in a material adjustment in the subsequent years are included in following
notes:

(a) Property, plant and equipment (note 3.2)

(b) Stock-in-trade (note 3.3)

(¢) Trade debts (note 3.4)

(d) Taxation (note 3.10)

(e) Staff retirement benefits (note 3.8)

Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

a) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting standards
that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of accounting standards
are only effective for annual periods beginning from the dates specified below:

- IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The
interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the
measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is
not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

- IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing guidance, including IAS 17 ‘Leases’,
IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15
‘Operating Leases- Incentives’ and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single,
on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
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There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value
items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors
continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company is
currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of its lease arrangements
that will result in recognition of right of use assets and liabilities on adoption
of the standard.

Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long
Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies
that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment
is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or
‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the
scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual sequence in which
both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an
impact on Company’s financial statements.

Amendments to [AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).
The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a
defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to
determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect
of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income.
The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on Company’s
financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ — Definition of a Business
(effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The IASB
has issued amendments aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an
entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The
amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities
and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
include an election to use a concentration test. The standard is effective for
transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amendments are intended
to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In
addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality
judgements when preparing their general purpose financial statements in
accordance with [FRS Standards.
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- On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB)
has issued a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting which is
applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for IFRS
in the future. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB
to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee in
interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and
any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the usual due
process — this means that the overall impact on standard setting may take some
time to crystallise. The companies may use the Framework as a reference for
selecting their accounting policies in the absence of specific [FRS requirements.
In these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new
guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless the new guidance contains
specific scope outs

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
The G20 asked the Financial Stability Board (FSB) to undertake a fundamental
review of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review, the FSB
published a report setting out its recommended reforms of some major interest
rate benchmarks such as IBORs. Public authorities in many jurisdictions have
since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in turn led to
uncertainty about the long-term viability of some interest rate benchmarks. In
these amendments, the term 'interest rate benchmark reform' refers to the market-
wide reform of an interest rate benchmark including its replacement with an
alternative benchmark rate, such as that resulting from the FSB's recommendations
set out in its July 2014 report 'Reforming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks' (the
reform). The amendments made provide relief from the potential effects of the
uncertainty caused by the reform. A company shall apply the exceptions to all
hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform.

The amendments are not likely to affect the financial statements of the Company.

- IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2019) provides interim guidance on accounting for regulatory
deferral accounts balances while IASB considers more comprehensive guidance
on accounting for the effects of rate regulation. In order to apply the interim
standard, an entity has to be rate regulated — i.e. the establishment of prices that
can be charged to its customers for goods or services is subject to oversight
and/or approved by an authorized body. The term ‘regulatory deferral account
balance’ has been chosen as a neutral descriptor for expense (income) or variance
account that is included or is expected to be included by the rate regulator in
establishing the rate(s) that can be charged to customers and would not otherwise
be recognized as an asset or liability under other IFRSs. The standard is not
likely to have any effect on Company’s financial statements.

- Amendment to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensatio (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
01, 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for measurement at amortised
cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires its contractual cash flows to meet the SPPI
criterion - i.e. the cash flows are 'solely payments of principal and interest'.
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Some prepayment options could result in the party that triggers the early
termination receiving compensation from the other party (negative compensation).
The amendment allows that financial assets containing prepayment features with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements
of IFRS 9.

The application of amendment is not likely to have an impact on Company's
financial statements.

- Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements
address amendments to following approved accounting standards:

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the
amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a company
increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a
business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint
operation when it obtains control of the business. A company does not
remeasure its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains
joint control of the business.

- TAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax
consequences of dividends (including payments on financial instruments
classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that
generates the distributable profits.

- TAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a company treats
as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop
an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. The above
amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2019 and are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below.

3.1 Changes in significant accounting policies
The Company has adopted IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' and IFRS
9 'Financial Instruments' from December 01, 2018 which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after July 01, 2018 and for reporting period / year ending on or after

June 30, 2019 respectively.

The details of new significant accounting policies adopted and the nature and effect of
the changes to previous accounting policies are set out below:
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3.1.1

3.1.2

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers'

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers (IFRS 15) became applicable
to the Company from December 01, 2018. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model
to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes
a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and related interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a
customer obtains control of goods or services.

The Company has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of
IFRS 15 as allowed under the Standard. This method requires the recognition
of the cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of initially applying IFRS
15 to retained earnings. Accordingly, the information presented for comparative
period in these financial statements have not been restated i.e. it is presented,
as previously reported under IAS 18 and relate interpretations.

Management has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognized at
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is
when the goods are delivered and invoiced to the customer.

The above is generally consistent with the timing and amounts of revenue that
the Company recognised in accordance with the previous standard, IAS 18.
Therefore, management has concluded that the adoption of IFRS 15 did not
have material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognition of the
Company.

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments became applicable to the Company for the
reporting period beginning from December 01, 2018. IFRS 9 sets out requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The management has
concluded that the adoption of IFRS 9 did not have material impact on the
financial statements. The details of new significant accounting policies adopted
and the nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting policies are set
out below:

i. Classification and Measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in 1AS 39 for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous
1AS 39 categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans and
receivables, held for trading and available for sale. IFRS 9, classifies
financial assets in the following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- measured at amortised cost.
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ii. Impairment

From December 01, 2018 the Company has implemented an expected credit
loss impairment model for financial assets. For trade receivables, the
calculation methodology has been updated to consider expected losses
based on ageing profile. The adoption of the expected loss approach has
not resulted in any impairment provision for trade receivables. The
comprehensive policy is disclosed in note 3.13.1

3.1.2.1 Classification and measurement of financial instruments

The measurement category and the carrying amount of financial assets and
liabilities in accordance with IAS 39 and IFRS 9 at December 01, 2018 are

as follows:
IAS 39 IFRS 9
Financial Assets Measurement Carrying Measurement Carrying
category Amount category Amount
(Rupees in '000)
Loans to employees Loans and receivables 16,901 Amortised cost 16,901
Long term deposits Loans and receivables 1,095 Amortised cost 1,095
Trade debts Loans and receivables 17,405 Amortised cost 17,405
Loans and advances Loans and receivables 62,149 Amortised cost 62,149
Deposits, prepayments
and other recievables Loans and receivables 294,544 Amortised cost 294,544
Cash and bank balances ~ Loans and receivables 907,654 Amortised cost 907,654
Interest accrued Loans and receivables 7,598 Amortised cost 7,598
Total financial assets W m
IAS 39 IFRS 9
Financial Liabilities Measurement Carrying Measurement Carrying
category Amount category Amount
(Rupees in '000)
Trade and other payables Amortized cost 273,178 Amortised cost 273,178
Unclaimed dividend Amortsed cost 10,759 Amortised cost 10,759
Total financial liabilities T&?ﬂ T,937
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3.2

3.3

Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any, except for capital work-in-progress which is stated at cost.
Assets having cost exceeding the minimum threshold as determined by the management
are capitalized. All other assets are charged in the year of acquisition. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Subsequent cost

Subsequent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the entity, and its cost can be measured reliably. Cost incurred
to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is capitalised and
the asset so replaced is retired from use. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to income applying the straight line method whereby the cost
less residual value of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. Residual values,
depreciation rates and method are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if the
impact is significant.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which the asset is available for
use while no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal. The rates of depreciation
are stated in note 4.3 to the financial statements.

Gains and losses on disposal

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or where no
future economic benefits are expected to be realised from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses on disposal of an item of operating fixed asset is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost and consists of expenditure incurred and
advances made in respect of assets in the course of their construction and installation.
Transfers are made to relevant asset category as and when assets are available for intended
use.

Stock in trade

Stock in trade are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 1s determined
using first-in first- out method.

Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated cost of completion and cost necessary to make the sale.
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items wherever necessary and is
recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Trade debts

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at their transaction price and
subsequently measured at amortised cost less loss allowances. These assets are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company applies the IFRS
9 simplified approach for measuring expected credit loss (ECL) on trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime credit loss. The ECL on trade receivables are calculated
based on actual credit loss experience over the last year on the total balance of non-
credit impaired trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in
hand, with banks in deposit accounts and term deposit receipts with original maturity
period of three months or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as aresult of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount
can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the performance
obligations arising from the contract with a customer is satisfied and the amount of
revenue that it expects to be entitled to can be determined. This usually occurs when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is when goods are invoiced
and delivered to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is disclosed net of
returns, discounts and other allowances.

Return on bank deposits, investments and interest on loans is accounted for on a time
proportionate basis using the applicable rate of return / interest Miscellaneous income
is recognized on receipt basis.

Staff retirement benefits

3.8.1 Defined benefit plan

The Company operates the following defined benefit schemes:

- An approved funded pension scheme for management staff. Pension is payable
for life and thereafter to surviving spouses and / or dependent children; and

- An approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees.

46




Wyeth

3.9

Benefits under such schemes are payable on completion of prescribed qualifying
period of service.

Contributions are made by the Company to these funds on the basis of actuarial
valuations carried out annually by a qualified actuary using projected unit credit
method. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

3.8.2 Defined contribution plan
The Company also operates following defined contribution plans:

- An approved funded contributory provident fund for all eligible employees.
Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Company and the employee.

- An approved funded defined contribution pension scheme (DC Pension
Scheme) for:

- All employees joining on or after April 1, 2013;

- All employees who opted for DC Pension Scheme in place of DB Pension
Scheme on July 1, 2014. The benefits of such employees were transferred
from DB Pension Scheme to DC Pension Scheme based on actuarial
recommendations.

3.8.3 Employees' compensated absences

The Company accounts for liability against employees' compensated absences
in the period in which these are earned upto the reporting date.

Share-based payments

The Company participates in a time-vested share based rewards plan operated by Pfizer
Incorporation, (the ultimate parent company) whereby, Pfizer Incorporation. grants rights
of its shares to the eligible employees of the Company. The primary share-based awards
and their general terms and conditions are as follows:

- Stock options / total shareholders return unit (TSRUs), which, when vested, entitle
the holder to purchase a specified number of shares of Pfizer common stock at a
price per share equal to the market price of Pfizer Incorporation, share on the date
of grant.

- Restricted stock units (RSUs), which, when vested, entitle the holder to receive a
specified number of shares of Pfizer Incorporation, including shares resulting from

dividend equivalents paid on such RSUs.

The cost of award is charged to statement profit or loss over the vesting period and
credited to equity as a contribution from the parent.
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3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised
in statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively
enacted rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if
any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years, if any.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using financial position method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates of
taxation.

Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary

differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised.

Borrowings cost
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred
using effective interest rate method except where such cost are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such cost
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Pak Rupees, at the
foreign exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rates at the
reporting date. Exchange differences are taken to the statement of profit or loss.
Financial instruments
3.13.1 Financial assets

3.13.1.1 Classification

The Company classifies financial assets on the basis of the business model

within which they are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The
financial assets of the Company are categorized as follows:
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3.13.1.2

3.13.1.3

a) Financial assets at amortised cost

- these are the financial assets held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)

- these are the financial assets held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

¢) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

- these are the financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs associated
with these financial assets are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income account.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are valued as follows:

a) Debt Investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains

and losses and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

b) Equity Investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised
as income in the statement of profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

¢) Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
including any interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in profit
or loss.

d) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

3.13.1.4 Impairment

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit
loss’ (ECL) model. IFRS 9 introduces a forward looking expected credit losses
model, rather than the current incurred loss model, when assessing the impairment
of financial assets in the scope of IFRS 9. The new impairment model applies
to financial assets measured at amortized cost, contract assets and debt investments
at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and
other receivables. Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables, are
presented separately in the statement of profit or loss. Trade and other receivables
are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Management
used actual credit loss experience over past years to base the calculation of ECL
on adoption of IFRS 9. Given the Company’s experience of collection history
and no historical loss rates / bad debts and normal receivable aging, the move
from an incurred loss model to an expected loss model has not had an impact
on the financial position and / or financial performance of the Company.
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3.13.1.5 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

3.13.2

3.13.3

3.134

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported
in the financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or winding up of the
Company or the counterparties.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial
liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables.
The Company derecognises the financial liabilities when contractual obligations
are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability other than at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities
are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised at the time when the Company's contractual
right to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the right to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control the transferred asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised
at the time when they are extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities is taken to the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest. The fair value for financial
instruments traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted
price, without any deduction for transaction costs.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value
is determined by using valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the
circumstances. Valuation techniques include the market approach (i.e., using
recent arm’s length market transactions adjusted as necessary and reference to
the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same)
and the income approach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis making as much
use of available and supportable market data as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

Level 1 : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asset

Level 2 : Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3 : Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at
the end of the reporting period during which the change occurs.

Dividends and appropriation of profit

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements
in the period in which these are approved.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-current assets are reviewed at each
reporing date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable

to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets

Operating fixed assets

At November 30, 2017
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended November 30, 2018
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation
Closing net book value

At November 30, 2018
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended November 30, 2019

Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation

Closing net book value
At November 30, 2019
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

53

November 30, November 30,
Note 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

4.1 15,123 13,485
Vehicles Office Total
equipments

——————————————————————— (Rupees in '000)-----------==-=-=-m-=-

27,981 12,443 40,424
(22,064) (11,710 (33,774)
5,917 733 6,650
5917 733 6,650
12,138 - 12,138
8,413 - 8,413
(7,749 - (7,749)
664 - 664
(3,906) (733) (4,638)
13,485 . 13,485
31,706 12,443 44,149
(18,221) (12,443) (30,663)
13,485 - 13,485
13,485 - 13,485
10,450 - 10,450
10,754 - 10,754
(9,306) - (9,306)
1,448 - 1,448
(7,364) - (7,364)
15,123 - 15,123
31,402 12,443 43,845
(16,279) (12,443) (28,722)
15,123 - 15,123
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4.2 Capital work in progress

Cost
As at Additions Transfer to As at
December 1, operating November 30,
2018 fixed assets 2019
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicles - 10,450 (10,450) -
- 10,450 (10,450) -
Cost
As at Additions Transfer to As at
December 1, operating November 30,
2017 fixed assets 2018
(Rupees in '000)
Vehicles - 12,138 (12,138) -
- 12,138 (12,138) -

4.3 Depreciation on operating fixed assets is charged at the following rates:

Vehicles
Office equipments

4.4 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:

Annual rate of
depreciation

(%)

25
8 t0 33.33

November 30, November 30,

Note 2019

2018

(Rupees in '000)

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 18 4,952 3,456
Administrative expenses 19 2,412 1,182
7,364 4,638

4.5 The operating fixed assets (note 4.1) include items costing Rs. 11.375 million (2018: Rs.

20.258 million) which are fully depreciated as of November 30, 2019 but are still in active

use.
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5.1

5.2

53

5.4

5.5

LONG TERM LOANS TO EMPLOYEES -
considered good

November 30, November 30,
Note 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

Loans to Employees 51,52 &5.3 13,201 16,901
Less: Receivable within one year 9 5,074 5,107
8,127 11,794

This includes loan amounting to Rs. 0.17 million (2018: Rs. 1.931 million) provided to
Tafazzul Khan (Company Secretary) repayable with monthly installments of Rs. 0.085 million.

This includes loans to executives, the details of which are as follows:

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

Opening balance 2,796 2,956
Loans disbursed during the year 2,036 4,222
Loans repaid during the year (3,219) (4,382)
Closing balance 1,613 2,796

These represent interest free loans to executives and other employees for purchase of motor
cars and motor cycles in accordance with the Company's policy and are recoverable in one
to six years in monthly instalments. These loans are secured against provident fund balances
of the employees

Receivable in:

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

- less than three years but over one year 6,461 5,636
- more than three years 1,666 6,158
8,127 11,794

The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from executives at the end of any month during
the year was Rs. 3.929 million (2018: Rs. 3.735 million).
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6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred (credits) / debits arising in respect of:

Accelerated tax depreciation

Provision for gratuity and pension

Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks
Allowance for sales returns

Provision for voluntary separation scheme
Provision for sales tax on toll manufacturing

Deferred tax asset not recognized

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

1,343 585
26,268 10,724
3,761 15,063
1,111 ;
- 2,512
4,326 1,644
36,809 30,528
(36,809) (30,528)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised at year end as taxable profit under normal tax

regime may not be sufficient.

STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw and packing materials
Work-in-process

Finished goods
Stock-in-transit

Less: Provision for slow moving and
obsolete stocks

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

4,755 6,099
73,204 -
502,724 361,440

- 22,528
580,683 390,067
13,131 135,583
567,552 254,484

Finished goods include items costing Rs. 0.311 million (2018: Rs. 2.11 million) which have
been recognized at a net realizable value of Rs. Nil (2018: Rs. 1.89 million).

During the year, provision of Rs. 9.093 million (2018: Rs. 78.885 million) has been recognized
and stock-in-trade valued at Rs. 131.545 million (2018: Rs. 0.886 million) has been written
off from provision, while stock-in-trade valued at Rs. 1.836 million (2018: Rs. Nil) has been

written off directly.

As at November 30, 2019, raw materials, packing materials and work in progress of Rs. nil
(2018: Rs. 6.099 million) are held at S -33 Hawkes Bay SITE by ICI Pakistan Limited.
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9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

Note
TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Trade debts - unsecured
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Secured
Current portion of long-term loans to employees 5
Receivable from gratuity fund
Advances - unsecured

- Suppliers
- Employees 9.1&9.2

November 30, November 30,

2019

2018

(Rupees in '000)

2,545 17,405
5,074 5,107
40,000 60,000
4,498 18,242
1,911 2,149
6,409 20,391
51,483 85,498

This includes amounts due from executives amounting to Rs. 0.33 million (2018: Rs. 0.7

million).

The maximum aggregate amount of advances due from executives at the end of any month

during the year was Rs. 1.67 million (2018: Rs. 0.7 million).

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade deposits
Prepayments
Margin deposits for guarantees and
letters of credit
Receivable from Pfizer Pakistan Limited
Receivable from ICI Pakistan Limited 10.1
Receivable from pension fund 27.2

November 30, November 30,

2019

2018

(Rupees in '000)

14,286 22,458
1,112 4,663
- 23
17,987 18,733
- 253,330
7,491 337
40,876 299,544

Receivables from ICI Pakistan Limited as explained in Note 11, 11.2 and 11.3 of Annual

Accounts of 2018 have been settled during the year.
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November 30, November 30,

Note 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks:
- Term deposit receipts 11.1 1,100,000 850,000
- In savings accounts 11.2 49,185 57,654
1,149,185 907,654
11.1 These carry mark-up ranging from 12.3% to 12.6% (2018: 7.10% to 7.95%) and will mature
by January 2020.
11.2 These carry mark-up at the rate of 11.25% (2018: 6.5%) per annum.
November 30, November 30,
12. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized capital

5,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018

(Number of shares)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each

Shares fully paid in cash

Shares issued as fully paid for
consideration other than cash
- note 12.2

Shares issued as fully paid
bonus shares

2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

500,000 500,000

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

38,671 38,671
47,749 47,749
55,741 55,741

142,161 142,161

As on November 30, 2019, Wyeth LLC, USA and Wyeth Holdings LLC, USA held 576,470

(2018: 576,470) and 448,560 (2018: 448,560) shares of Rs. 100 each respectively. On October
15, 2009 Pfizer Incorporation acquired Wyeth LLC, USA and has become the ultimate parent

386,711 386,711
477,493 477,493
557,405 557,405
1,421,609 1,421,609
12.1
of the Company.
12.2

These shares include 473,529 shares issued under the scheme of arrangement for amalgamation

of Wyeth Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited and Cynamid (Pakistan) Limited in the year 1996.
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13.

13.1

13.2

14.

15.

15.1.

15.1.1

Note November 30, November 30,
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

Creditors 13.1 507,067 94,957
Accrued liabilities 113,312 155,526
Advances from customers 19,522 41,223
Accumulated compensated absences 7,320 6,384
Payable to gratuity fund 27.2 98,070 97,650
Workers' Welfare Fund 13.2 417 14,725
Central Research Fund - 974
Sales tax payable 113 112

745,821 412,051

Creditors include Rs. 478.047 million (2018: Rs. 66.707 million) payable to associated
undertakings.

November 30, November 30,

2019 2018
Workers' Welfare Fund (Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 14,725 18,671
Less: adjustment / payments made during the year (14,308) (3,946)
Closing balance 417 14,725

SHORT TERM FINANCE FACILITY

The facilities for opening letters of credit and guarantees, as at 30 November 2019 amounted
to Rs. 50 million (2018: Rs. 50 million) which remained unutilized at the year end.

The facilities for overdraft available from bank amounts to Rs. 100 million at interest rate of
3 months KIBOR+1% (2018: Rs. 100 million at interst rate of 3 months KIBOR+1%) which
remained unutilized at year end.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

During the year 2003, certain ex-employees of the Company filed claims in High Court of
Sindh, Karachi, aggregating to Rs. 247.572 million against the Company for recovery of
damages.

Management, in consultation with its inhouse legal counsel / legal advisor, expects that the

decision will be in the Company's favor. Accordingly, no provision has been recognized in
these financial statements.
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15.1.2

15.1.3

15.14

15.1.5

During the year 2005, an ex-distributor has filed claims in High Court of Sindh, Karachi
against the Company aggregating to Rs. 75.1 million for recovery of damages. The
management, in consultation with its inhouse legal counsel / legal advisor, is confident that
the case will be decided in the Company's favour and hence no provision has been made
in this respect.

During course of the year, a partner of an ex-distributor (which partnership has now dissolved)
of the Company has filed a civil suit claiming Rs. 211 million from the Company ( the
breakup whereof is as follows : Rs. 10 million (rendition of accounts and recovery); Rs.
100 million (for mental torture, libel, insult and defamation); Rs.100 million (specific
performance of agreement) and Rs. 1 million (cost of litigation). The Company is contesting
the claims in court and the management, in consultation with its inhouse legal counsel /
legal advisor, is confident that the ultimate decision on the said claims will be favorable.
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

During the year 1994 the Company has filed appeal before the Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the order of the then Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) confirming the addition
on account of Transfer Pricing under section 79 of the Income Tax Ordinance 1979 (repealed)
relating to assessment year 1984-85. The aggregate liability is approximately Rs. 3.0 million
(2018 Rs. 3.0 million).

Management, in consultation with its inhouse legal counsel / tax advisor, is confident that
the ultimate decision of the appeal will be in the Company's favour. Accordingly no provision
has been recognised in these financial statements.

During the income year 2002-2003, the Company has filed appeals against Federal Board
of Revenue before Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) in respect adverse appellate orders
of the then Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals) in respect of arbitrary additions and
disallowances made in assessment orders for the assessment years from 1997-98 to 2002-
03 and for tax years 2003 to 2005 which have resulted in an aggregate tax liability of Rs.
181.162 million (2018: Rs.181.162 million). The tax liability has arisen mainly due to the
following reasons:

- The assessing officer has made additions to the income based on the contention that the
Company has allegedly paid excessive amount on import of raw materials.

- The assessing officer charged tax on purchases related to agriculture business of the
Company under presumptive tax regime by treating all purchases as commercial imports.

- The assessing officer also charged tax on gain on sale of the Company's agriculture
business and has also arbitrarily disallowed certain expenses attributed to that segment
of the business.

- The assessing officer has disallowed the credit for adjustment of tax refunds and
adjustment of compensation on delayed refunds.

Although the Company has filed appeals with various appellate authorities in respect of the
above, however, a provision of Rs. 137.614 million (2018: Rs. 137.614 million) is being
carried against the above demands on grounds of prudence. In consultation with their tax
advisors, the management is confident that the ultimate decision of the appeals will be in
the Company's favour.
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During the year 2017, the Company has filed appeal for the Tax Year 2011 against Federal
Board of Revenue before Appellate Tribunal Inland revenue (ATIR) in respect of certain
issues either set-aside or confirmed by the Commissioner of Appeals. Since, the appeal is
pending adjudication, no provision has been recognised in these financial statements.

15.1.6 During the year 2013, the Company has filed an appeal against Federal Board of Revenue
in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR), against tax demand aggregating to Rs. 7.4
million (2018: Rs. 7.4 million).

The tax liability has arisen on account of transfer pricing and fixed assets written off for
the assessment year 2004. Management, in consultation with its inhouse legal counsel /
tax advisor is confident that the appeal will be decided in the Company's favour and therefore
no provision has been made in these financial statements.

15.1.7 Further during the year 2013, the Company has filed various rectification applications before
the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue for various disallowances and additions made
for the tax years from 1998 to 2005 which have resulted in an aggregate tax liability of Rs.
52.440 million (2018: Rs. 52.440 million). The claims are mainly for the following reasons:

- The assessing officer charged on the bases of applying tax rate on raw materials, as of
imported finished goods.

- The assessing officer disallowed provision of obsolete stock.

- The assessing officer added on account of reclaiming bad debts written off, during the
year and that were disallowed in prior year.

The management, in consultation with its inhouse legal counsel / tax advisor, is confident
that the application will be decided in the Company's favour and therefore no provision has
been made in this respect.

15.1.8 The tax department has carried out the monitoring of withholding tax audit for 6 years (viz
Tax Years 2010, 2012, 2013, 2015, 2016 and 2017), for which the aggregate demand of Rs.
44.319 million has been raised. The Company has filed appeals against these orders in 2016
and 2017, the management, in consultation with its inhouse legal counsel / tax advisor, is
confident that the ultimate decision of the appeals will be in the Company's favour.

15.1.9 The Assistant Collector, Sales Tax and Federal Excise has issued an order in 2008 requiring
the Company to pay Federal Excise Duty (FED) along with penalty and default surcharge
amounting to approximately Rs. 1 million in respect of technical services availed by the
Company.

The Company has filed an appeal against this order. The Commissioner Inland Revenue
Appeals (CIRA) passed an order in favour of the Company. However, the Tax Department
has filed an appeal before the Tribunal, and the case has been remanded back by tribunal
during the year 2012 to the department for de novo consideration. The matter is pending
since then.

15.1.10 During the year 2017, the Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR) selected the case of the
Company for audit of its income tax affair for tax year 2015 in pursuance of which an
Information Document Request (IDR) was issued by the (Additional Commssioner Inland
Revenue (ACIR). The ACIR passed an amended assessment order in 2018 thereby creating
tax demand of Rs. 52.379 million.
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15.2

15.2.1

15.2.2

16.

16.1

16.1.1

17.

The order was subsequently challenged before CIRA which was decided by an order in
2019 partly in Company's favor. Both the tax department and Company have filed an appeal
before ATIR against the order issued in 2019 and the matter is pending for hearing.

Commitments
Commitments for capital expenditure

Guarantees and indemnity bonds for
imported raw materials

NET SALES
Sales - Domestic

- Export

Less: Discounts and commission
Returns

Contract Balances

Contract Liabilities

November 30, November 30,

2019

2018

(Rupees in '000)

- 4,796
- 4,855
1,096,195 1,308,075
- 23,243
1,096,195 1,331,318
139,320 134,824
8,638 4,142
147,958 138,966
948,237 1,192,352
19,522 41,223

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from distributors
for future sales as per the Company's policy, for which revenue is recognised at a point in

time.

The amount of Rs. 41.223 million outstanding in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
year has been recognised as revenue for the year ended 30 November 2019, while new
advances amounting to Rs. 19.522 million were further received during the year which will

be recognized as revenue in the next year.

COST OF SALES

Opening stock

Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock in trade
Re-packing charges

Purchases

Stock written off during the year

Closing stock
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November 30, November 30,

2019

2018

(Rupees in '000)

367,539 582,154
9,093 78,885
4,119 65,465

1,174,620 626,877

(131,545) _
(580,683) (367,539)
843,143 985,842
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18.

18.1

19.

19.1

SELLING, MARKETING AND
DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES November 30, November 30,
Note 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

Salaries, wages and other benefits 18.1 & 20 60,806 82,519
Fuel and power 149 392
Rent, rates and taxes 607 648
Insurance 1,231 1,338
Repairs and maintenance 256 874
Transportation 5,009 5,246
Travelling and entertainment 5,408 14,130
Postage, communication and stationery 1,081 5,054
Depreciation 4.4 4,952 3,456
Advertising and sales promotion 32,711 59,478
Others 1,573 1,621

113,783 174,756

Salaries, wages and other benefits include a net charge of Rs. 19.529 million (2018:
Rs. 16.641 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits. Out of this amount Rs.1.9 million
(2018: 1.6 million) have been charged to associated company on account of allocation of
services provided by colleagues.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

November 30, November 30,
Note 2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

Salaries, wages and other benefits 19.1 & 20 27,372 30,011
Fuel and power 8 22
Rent, rates and taxes 238 83
Insurance 180 233
Travelling and entertainment 2,509 2,030
Postage, communication and stationery 421 1,098
Legal and professional charges 6,611 6,585
Auditors' remuneration 19.2 1,855 1,836
Depreciation 4.4 2,412 1,182
Others 19.3 3,233 4,678

44,839 47,758

Salaries, wages and other benefits include a net charge of Rs. 5.145 million (2018: Rs. 4.622
million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
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19.2

19.3

20.

21.

22.

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee - annual
Fee for half yearly review
Other certifications

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

895 895
340 324
620 617

1,855 1,836

This inculdes Rs. 0.037 million paid to stock exchange as penalty as required under clause
5.20.1 of PSX regulations for late submission of free float statements.

VOLUNTARY SEPARATION SCHEME (VSS)

VSS programme is in place for the last few years to achieve rationalisation and corporate
restructuring of the Company. Aggregate cost is a reversal of Rs. 4.827 million (2018: Rs.

22.798 million).

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts and term deposits

Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment - net
Liabilities no longer payable written back
Miscellaneous Income
Recovery of margin deposits

OTHER EXPENSES

Central research fund
Deposits written off
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November 30, November 30,

2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
(5,076) 19,298
249 3,500
(4,827) 22,798

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018

(Rupees in '000)

120,053 58,998
2,395 1,919
825 9,613
20,220 -
4,838 -
148,331 70,530
- 243

- 1,855

- 2,098
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23.

24.

24.1

25.

FINANCE COSTS

Net exchange loss

Bank charges

Amortization expense on employee loans

TAXATION

Current

Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2018: 29%)
Effect of income taxable under Minimum

tax regime / presumptive tax regime
Minimum turnover tax
Tax effect of others items

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted

Profit / (loss) for the year after tax

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year

Profit / (loss) per share - basic and diluted

Total earnings / (loss) per share - basic and diluted
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November 30, November 30,

2019

2018

(Rupees in '000)

21,516 27,161
792 1,071
4,427 -

26,735 28,232
44,892 35,314
44,892 35314
68,068 24,196
19,740 7,017
25,152 20,103
- 6,934

- 1,260
44,892 35314
23,176 (11,118)

(Number of shares)

1,421,609 1,421,609
(Rupees)

16.30 (7.82)

16.30 (7.82)
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26. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for remuneration including
certain benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company are as

follows:
2019 2018
*Chief *Chief
Executive *Directors Executives Executive *Directors Executives
(Rupees in '000)
Managerial
remuneration - - 42,780 - - 46,058
Bonus - - 5,659 - - 3,706
Medical expenses - - 1,946 - - 2,529
Retirement benefits - - 6,660 - - 13,019
Directors meeting fees - 3,107 - - 1,680 -
- 3,107 57,045 - 1,680 65,312
Number of person 1 5 18 1 5 18

* Rs. 3.183 million (2018: Rs. 2.955 million) have been charged in these financial statements
on account of allocation of cost of services provided by Chief Executive of associated company.

26.1 In addition to the above, some of the executives are provided with Company owned and
maintained cars.

26.2 Further, the impact of benefits available to executives recognised by the Company in the
expenses during the year on account of share-based payment plan aggregate to Rs. 2.08 million
(2018: Rs. 1.646 million).

November 30, November 30,

26.3 Number of Employees 2019 2018
Total number of employees as of the reporting date 75 82
Average number of employees during the year 78 82
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27.

27.1

27.2

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

As mentioned in note 3.8 the Company operates approved funded pension and gratuity
schemes. The latest actuarial valuations of the schemes were carried out as at November 30,
2019. Projected Unit Credit Method using the following significant assumptions was used
for these valuations:

November 30, November 30,
2019 2018
Discount rate 12.25% per annum 12.25% per annum
Expected rate of increase in salary 11.75% per annum 11.75% per annum
Pension increase 4.5% per annum 4.5% per annum
Minimum wage increase 7.5% per annum 7.5% per annum

The disclosures made in notes 27.2 to 27.6 and 27.9 are based on the information included
in the actuarial valuation as of actuarial valuation as of November 30, 2019 and November
30,2018.

Balance sheet reconciliation

2019 2018
Gratuity Pension Total Gratuity Pension Total
-------------- (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000) -------------
Present value of
defined benefit
obligation 78,363 50,577 128,940 86,235 58,419 144,654
Fair value of
plan assets 19,707 (58,008) (38,361) 11,415 (58,756)  (47,341)
Funded status 98,070 (7,491) 90,579 97,650 (337) 97,313
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27.3

274

27.5

2019

2018

Gratuity Pension Total
---------- (Rupees in '000)

Gratuity  Pension  Total

Movement in present value of
defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit

obligation at beginning of the year 86,235 58,419 144,654
Current service cost 4,625 77 4,702
Interest cost 10,451 6,719 17,170
Past service cost - - -
Remeasurement of change in

financial assumptions

(Rupees in '000) ----------

78,438 53,726 132,164
4,232 76 4,308
6,598 4298 10,896

(1,043) 5531 4488
(1,990)  (5.212)  (7,202)

Remeasurement of obligation (7,204)  (8,509) (15,713)
Benefits paid (15,744)  (6,129) (21,873)
Present value of defined benefit

obligation at end of the year 78,363 50,577 128,940

86,235 58,419 144,654

Movement in the fair value of
plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at

(50294) 97,555 47,261
4,046) 8,024 3978
4391 (7,589)  (3,198)

6,501 - 6,501
(1,990)  (5211)  (7,201)

beginning of the year (11,415) 58,756 47,341
Expected return on plan assets (480) 6,727 6,247
Remeasurement of plan assets 1,132 (1,321) (189)
Inter fund transfer - 34,023 (34,023)
Actual contributions by employer 6,800 35 6,835
Benefits paid (15,744)  (6,129) (21,873)
Fair value of plan assets at end of

the year at end of the year (19,707) 58,068 38,361

(11,415) 58,756 47341

Components of defined
benefit cost

4232 76 4,308
6,598 4298 10,896
4046 (8,024) (3,978

14,876 (3,650) 11,226

(1,043) 5531 4488
(4391) 7,589 3,198

Charge for the year to be

recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost 4,625 77 4,702
Interest cost 10,451 6,719 17,170
Expected return on plan assets 480 (6,727)  (6,247)
Past service cost - vested - - -

15,556 69 15,625

Defined benefit cost recognised in

Other Comprehensive Income

(0C1)

Loss / (gain) on obligation (7,204)  (8,509) (15,713)
Gain on plan asset (1,132) 1,321 189
Net loss / (gain) (8,336)  (7,188) (15,524)

(5434) 13,120 7,686
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27.6

27.7

27.8

27.9

2019

2018

Gratuity Pension Total
---------- (Rupees in '000)

Gratuity ~ Pension

Movement in amounts
(receivable from) / payable to

(Rupees in '000)

Total

defined benefit plan
Balance at beginning of the year 97,650 337) 97,313 128,732 (43,830) 84,902
Charge / (reversal) for the year 15,556 69 15,625 14,876 (3,650) 11,226
Contributions during the year (6,800) 35) (6,835) (6,501) - (6,501)
Inter-Fund Transfer - (34,023) 34,023 -
Total remeasurements recognised

in OCI (8,336)  (7,188) (15,524) (5,434) 13,120 7,686
Balance at end of the year 98,070 (7,491) 90,579 97,650 (337) 97,313
Remeasurements during the year
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation
(Gain) / loss due to change in

financial assumptions
(Gain) / loss due to investment

return (1,132) 1,321 189 (4,391) 7,589 3,198
(Gain) / loss due to change in

experience adjustments (7,204)  (8,509) (15,713) (1,043) 5,531 4,488
Total actuarial (gain) / loss on

obligation (8,336)  (7,188) (15,524) (5,434) 13,120 7,686
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets
Gain on plan assets
Total re-measurement (gain) / loss

for the year (8,336)  (7,188) (15,524) (5,434) 13,120 7,686
Major categories / composition of

plan assets are as follows:
National savings 6,914 23,976 30,890 - - -
Government bonds 5,701 18,662 24,363 11,197 90,700 101,897
Bank deposits - - - 1,284 443 1,727
Debtors / (Creditors) (32,473) 15441 (17,032) (23,896) (32,388) (56,284)

(19,858) 58,079 38,221 (11,415) 58,755 47,340

Amounts for the current year and previous four annual periods of the fair value of plan assets, present value

of defined benefit obligation and surplus arising thereon is as follows:

As at 30 November 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(Rupees in '000)
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 128,940 144,654 132,164 241,456 237,253
Fair value of plan assets (38,361) (47,341) (47,261) (197,295) (195,735)
Deficit / (surplus) 90,579 97,313 84,903 44,161 41,518
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27.10

27.11

27.12

27.13

27.14

27.15

27.16

Components of defined benefit Gratuity Pension Total
cost for the next year

Current service cost 4,348 78 4,426
Net interest cost / (income) 10,996 918) 10,078
15,344 (840) 14,504

Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation

2020 1,551 6,319 7,870
2021 1,691 6,429 8,120
2022 1,917 6,516 8,433
2023 2,078 6,578 8,656
2024 8,484 6,614 15,098
2025 -2029 38,653 33,652 72,305

Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions: Actuarial Liability

Discount rate +1% (11,312)
Discount rate -1% 13,072
Salary increase +1% 9,902
Salary increase -1% (8,650)
Pension increase +1% 3,359
Pension increase -1% (3,033)
Minimum wage increase +1% (72)
Minimum wage increase -1% 68

The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy.

The Company expects to contribute Rs. 16.606 million in next year towards gratuity fund.

During the year, the Company contributed Rs. 5.169 million (2018: Rs. 5.283 million) to
the provident fund.

Provident fund November 30, December 31,
2019 2018
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(Rupees in '000)

Net assets of the fund 94,402 97,800
Cost of investments made (actual investment made) 85,738 69,376
Cost of investments / net assets of the fund 91% 71%
Fair value of investments 91,184 90,246

Break-up of Investments of provident fund

Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of the size of the provident fund
are as follows:
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November 30, 2019 December 31, 2018
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Investments % of Investments % of

(Rupees in '000)  investment as

size of the fund

(Rupees in '000)

Fair value
Defence Saving Certificates 44,287 49% 31,530
Pakistan Investment Bonds 19,579 21% 55,912
Term Deposit Receipts 24,103 26% -
Balances with banks in 3,215 4% 2,804
Savings account

91,184 100% 90,246

investment as
size of the fund

All investments in collective investment schemes, listed equity and listed debt securities out
of aforementioned fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of

the Companies Act 2017, and the conditions specified thereunder.
28 SHARE-BASED REWARD PLANS

28.1 Details of the share-based reward plans are as follows:

2019 2018
TSRU's  Stock RSU's  TsruU's Stock RSU's
Options Options
(Number of shares)

Outstanding as at

December 1 2,868 1,965 585 2,077 2,353 633
Granted during the year 914 195 791 173
Dividend equivalent units -
Exercised during the year (1,253) (650) (270) - (388) (221)
Outstanding as at

November 30 2,529 1,315 510 2,868 1,965 585
28.2 The weighted average exercise price of stock options are as follows:

2019 2018
TSRU's  Stock RSU's  TSruU's Stock RSU's
Options Options
(in US$)

Outstanding as at

December 1 33.26 27.82 33.18 32.14 27.50 32.84
Granted during the year 43.35 - 43.29 35.74 - 35.74
Outstanding as at

November 30 37.57 27.36 37.79 33.26 27.82 33.18
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28.3

28.4

29.

29.1

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is based on the fair
value of share options granted, measured using a Black scholes model, with the following
inputs:

November 30, November 30,

Fair value of share options and assumptions 2019 2018

Share price $43.35 $35.74
Expected volatility (weighted average volatility) 18.34% 20.02%
Option life (expected weighted average life) 5 years 5 years
Expected dividends $1.44 1.36

Expected volatility of share price of Pfizer Incorporation. USA, (the ultimate parent company)
was determined using both implied and historical volatility rates.

The total expense recognised for the year arising from share-based payment transactions is
Rs. 2.08 million (2018: Rs. 1.647 million).

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise the ultimate parent company (Pfizer Incorporation, USA),
related group companies, staff retirement benefits, directors, key management personnel and
close members of the family of all the aforementioned related parties. The Company in the
normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Details of
transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically disclosed
elsewhere are as follows:

Details of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been specifically
disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

Relationship with Nature of November 30, November 30,
2019 2018

the compan transactions
pany (Rupees in '000)

Associated Companies Sale of goods - 23,243
Purchase of goods 1,046,685 626,865
Associated Companies Services received 7,345 7,218
Services rendered 87,944 75,269
Reimbursement of expenses - 9,630
Staff retirement Contribution to:

fund - Defined contribution plans 9,784 10,135
- Defined benefit plans 6,835 6,501
Ultimate Parent Company Dividend paid 51,252 307,509

Common Directorship Fee for receiving legal
services 88 675
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29.2  The following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transaction
or have arrangement / agreement in place:

29.3

Name of the Basis of Aggregate %
Related Party association of Shareholding
Pfizer Pakistan Limited Associated Company 0.0001%
Wyeth Employees Gratuity fund  Staff Retirement Fund N/A
Wyeth Provident Fund Staff Retirement Fund N/A
Wyeth Pension fund Staff Retirement Fund N/A
Wyeth DC Pension fund Staff Retirement Fund N/A
Vellani & Vellani Common Directorship N/A

Details of related parties, including those incorporated outside Pakistan, with whom the
Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place are as

below:

Name

Pfizer Service
Company BVBA

Pfizer Innovative
Supply Point. Intl

Wyeth LLC USA
Wyeth Holdings
LLC, USA

Pfizer
Incorporation

Registered Address
and Country
of Incorporation

Hoge Wei 10, 1930
Zaventem, Belgium

Hoge Wei 10, 1930
Zaventem, Belgium

235 East 42 Street,
New York, USA

235 East 42 Street,
New York, USA

8,1209 Rockwell
Dr, Makati, Philippines
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Basis of Aggregate %
Association of shareholding
Associated N/A

Company

Associated N/A
Company

Holding 40.55%
Company

Holding 31.55%
Company

Ultimate

Parent N/A
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30.

30.1

31.

31.1

Note

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit / (loss) for the year after taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Net increase in reserve for share-based payment plans
Charge for defined benefit plans
Actuarial losses recognized in other

comprehensive account
Depreciation
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Profit on bank deposits
Tax expense
Working capital changes 30.1

Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Retirement benefit plans

(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables

OPERATING SEGMENTS

November 30, November 30,

2019

2018

(Rupees in '000)

23,176 (11,118)
2,080 1,647
15,625 11,227
15,524 (7,686)
7,364 4,638
(122,452) 77,999
(2,395) (1,919)
(120,053) (58,998)
44,892 35314
435,072 16,026
298,833 67,130
(190,616) 291,129
14,860 17,306
34,015 47,249
258,668 54,845
(8,051) 1,068
108,876 411,597
326,196 (395,571)
435,072 16,026

The financial information has been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment.

The sales percentage by geographic region is as follows:

Pakistan
Other Asian countries

74

November 30, November 30,

2019 2018
(Percentage)
100.0% 98.3%
0.0% 1.7%
100% 100%
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31.2 All non-current assets of the Company as at November 30, 2019 are located in Pakistan.

31.3 Sales to two major customers of the Company is around 61.31% during the year ended

32.

33.

November 30, 2019 (2018: 63.71%).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS November 30, November 30,

Note 2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

Cash and bank balances 11 1,149,185 907,654

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The following table shows the carrying amounts financial assets and financial liabilities along
with fair value measurement hierarchy.

Carrying Amount Fair value
Amortized Financial Total Levell Level2 Level3
cost liabilities

(Rupees in '000)

Financial assets not measured
at fair value

Loans to employees 13,201 - 13,201 - - -
Long term deposits 145 - 145 - - -
Loans and advances 41,911 - 41,911 - - -
Deposits and other receivables 39,764 - 39,764 - - -
Interest accrued 16,902 - 16,902 - - -
Trade debts 2,545 - 2,545 - - -
Cash and bank balances 1,149,185 - 1,149,185 - - -
As at 30 November 2019 1,263,653 - 1,263,653 - - -
As at 30 November 2018 1,307,683 - 1,307,683 - - -

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Trade and other payables - 725,769 725,769 - - -
Unclaimed dividend - 11,185 11,185 - - -
As at 30 November 2019 - 736,954 736,954 - - -

As at 30 November 2018

376,535 376,535 = - -

Management considers that fair value of above assets and liabilities approximate their carrying
amount due to short term nature of these assets and liabilities or fair value not significantly
different to their carrying amounts owing to credit standing of counter parties.
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34.

34.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

Risk management systems are reviewed regularly by the Board to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities. The company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees compliance by management with the Company's risk management
policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company.

Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits and other receivables. To reduce exposure to
credit risk the Company has developed a formal approval process whereby credit limits are
applied to its customers. The management also continuously monitors the credit exposure
towards the customers. Outstanding customer balances are regularly reviewed.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any
credit enhancements.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is given below:
November 30, November 30,

2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)

Loans to employees 13,201 16,901
Long term deposits 145 1,095
Trade debts 2,545 17,405
Loans and advances 41,911 62,149
Interest accrued 16,902 7,598
Trade deposits and other receivables 39,764 294,881
Bank balances 1,149,185 907,654

1,263,653 1,307,683
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34.1.1 Credit risk is mitigated as the Company has an advance cash receipt model for all its
domestic distributors. Accordingly, the Company believes that it is not exposed to any major
concentration of credit risk in respect of trade debtors.

34.1.2 The bank balances represents low credit risk as they are placed with reputed banks with
strong credit ratings.

34.1.3 The aging of trade debtors at the balance sheet date is as follows:

November 30, November 30,

2019 2018
(Rupees in '000)
Not past due 2,545 17,405
Past due and impaired - -
2,545 17,405

34.2  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to maturity date.

November 30, 2019
Carrying Contractual Six Six to One
Amount cash flows months twelve to two
or less months years

(Rupees in '000)

Financial liabilities
Creditors 507,067 507,067 (507,067) - -
Accrued liabilities 113,312 113,312 (113,312) - -
Accumulated compensated

absences 7,320 7,320 (7,320) - -
Unclaimed dividend 11,185 11,185 (11,185) - -

638,884 638,884 (638,884) - -

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly
earlier, or at significantly different amount.
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34.3

34.3.1

34.3.2

November 30, 2018

Carrying Contractual Six Six to One
Amount cash flows months twelve to two
or less months years

(Rupees in '000)

Financial liabilities

Creditors 94,957 94,957 (94,957) - -
Accrued liabilities 155,526 155,526 (155,526) - -
Accumulated compensated
absences 6,884 6,884 (6,884) - -
Unclaimed dividend 10,759 10,759 (10,759) - -
268,126 268,126 (268,126) - -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise of foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within an acceptable range.

Foreign Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency
risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into are

denominated in foreign currencies.

Following is the gross balance sheet exposure classified into foreign currency:

November 30, November 30,

2019 2018
Amount in USD
Creditors (3,205,105) (613,728)
Gross balance sheet exposure (3,205,105) (613,728)

The average rate for US Dollars during the year was USD 1 = Rs. 148.17 (2018: USD 1 =
Rs. 118.49) and the rate at year end was USD 1 =Rs.156.66 (2018: USD 1 = Rs. 141.00).

Sensitivity analysis
At reporting date, if the Pak Rupee had strengthened / weakened by 10% against the US

Dollar with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
higher / lower by Rs. 50.21 million (2018: Rs. 8.68 million).
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34.3.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
change in the market interest rate. As at November 30, 2019, Rs. 1,149.19 million (2018:
Rs. 907.65 million) interest bearing financial assets are on fixed interest rates, hence
management believes that the Company is not materially exposed to interest rate changes.

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's abilty to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to support the sustained
development of its business.

The current capital structure of the Company is equity based with minimal or no financing
through borrowings.

36. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary,
for the purpose of comparison and better presentation the effect of which is immaterial.

37. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

The Board of Directors have proposed a final cash dividend for the year ended November
30,2019 of Rs. 100 (2018: Rs. 50) per share, amounting to Rs. 142.16 million (2018: Rs.
71.08 million) at their meeting held on February 25, 2020 subject to the approval of members
at the annual general meeting to be held on March 27, 2020.

These financial statements do not reflect the final cash dividend as this has been proposed
subsequent to the balance sheet date.

38. DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of the
Company on February 25, 2020.

SM. Wajeehuddin Kashif!Shafi

Chief Executive A Director Chief Financial Officer
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
from 2013 to 2019
(Rupees in '000)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Sales 3,054,725 2,674,709 2,770,780 1,829,096 1,192,352 948,237
Cost of sales 2,595,819 2,332,608 2,264,245 1,457,126 985,842 843,143
Gross profit 458,906 342,101 506,535 371,970 206,510 105,094
Selling,marketing, distribution

and administrative expenses 514,489 286,536 284,163 397,782 222,514 158,622
Other operating income /

(expenses) - net 42,030 26,880 (26,278) 1,383,026 08,432 148,331
Operating profit / (loss) (13,553) 82,445 196,094 1,357,214 52,428 94,803
Finance cost 339 1,112 1,315 2,200 28232 26,735
Profit/ (loss) before taxation (13,892) 81,333 194,779 1,355,014 24,196 68,008
Taxation 70,660 49316 81,963 375,019 35314 44,892
Profit/ (loss) after taxation (84,552) 32,017 112,816 979,995 (11,118) 23,176
Shareholders' equity 1,093,295 1,140,762 1,224,526 1,711,660 1,268,019 1,237,719
Property, plant and equipment 264,195 382,239 16,900 6,049 13,485 15,123
Current assets 1,345,947 1,288,636 1,923,697 2,558,996 1,664,455 1,971,330
Current liabilities 545,626 551,013 745,394 860,271 422810 757,006
Current ratio 247 234 2.58 297 3.94 2.60
Dividend - 20% 35% 600% 50% 100%

Number of employees as at
November 30 195 187 173 83 82 75
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT NOVEMBER 30, 2019
SH ARI\]I;;’I' gLFDERs Fglgh‘;ING SHARETSO SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
930 1 100 27,519 1.94
197 101 500 50,034 3.52
30 501 1000 21,695 1.53
27 1001 5000 65,394 4.60
1 10001 15000 10,201 0.72
1 50001 55000 52,374 3.68
1 55001 60000 57,788 4.06
1 110001 115000 111,574 7.85
1 445001 450000 448,560 31.55
1 575001 580000 576,470 40.55
1190 1,421,609 100.00

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

AS AT NOVEMBER 30, 2019

PARTICULARS SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDING PERCENTAGE
Associated companies 2 1,025,030 72.10
NIT 2 114,574 8.06
Directors, Chief Executive and their

spouses and minor children 6 127 0.01
Banks, DFI & NBFI 1 59,477 4.18
Insurance companies 1 52,374 3.68
Residents Individuals 1,136 147,800 10.40
Non - resident Individuals 28 5,900 0.42
Foreign companies 1 4,400 0.31
Others 13 11,927 0.84
COMPANY TOTAL 1,190 1,421,609 ©100.00
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT NOVEMBER 30, 2019

Information under clause xvi (j) of the Code of Corporate Governance

. Number of
Category No. Categories of Shareholders shares held Percentage

1 Associated companies, undertakings

and related parties

Wyeth LLC, U.S.A 576,470 40.5505

Wyeth Holdings Corporation, U.S.A. 448,560 31.5530
2 NIT 114,574 8.0594
3 Directors, Chief Executive and their

spouses and minor children

S. M. WAJEEHUDDIN 2 0.0001

IFTIKHAR SOOMRO 2 0.0001

IQBAL BENGALI 2 0.0001

SYED ZAKWAN AHMED 1 0.0001

BADARUDDIN FATEHALI VELLANI 100 0.0070

MUHAMMAD ZINDAH MOIN MOHAIJIR 20 0.0014
4 Public Sectors Companies and corporations Nil Nil
5 Banks, Developments Financial Institutions,

Non-Banking Financial Institutions,

Insurance Companies, Modarabas and

Mutual Funds

National Bank of Pakistan 59,477 4.1838

State Life Insurance Corp. of Pakistan 52,374 3.6841
6 Shareholders holding five percent or more

voting interest in the Listed Company

Wyeth LLC, U.S.A 576,470 40.5505

Wyeth Holdings Corporation, U.S.A. 448,560 31.5530

CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT

(UNIT) TRUST 111,574 7.8484
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FORM OF PROXY
71st Annual General Meeting

I, We of

(full address) being a member of Wyeth Pakistan Limited

hereby appoint

of (full address) or failing him

of (full
address) as my / our Proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 715t Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday March 27, 2020 at 11:00 a.m. and any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2020 signed

by in presence of

Please affix

Revenue

Stamp of

Rs 5.00
Signature and address of Witness Signature of Member
Folio No. / CDC Account and Number of Shares held
Participant’s CNIC Number
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy

to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his attorney duly
authorized in writing. If the member is a corporation its common seal should be affixed to the
instrument.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy, together with the Power of Attorney if any under which it is
signed or a notarilly certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company not less that 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

4. In case of Proxy for any individual beneficial owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this
meeting, it is necessary to deposit the attested copies of beneficial owner’s Computerized National
Identity Card (CNIC), Account and Participant’s CNIC numbers. The Proxy shall produce his
original CNIC at the time of the meeting. Representative of corporate members should bring the
usual documents for such purpose.
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